
 

 

AGENDA 
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING 

TUESDAY, MAY 14, 2024 – 10:00 AM 
THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD REMOTELY ON ZOOM AND IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC.

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR REGISTERING FOR PUBLIC ACCESS TO THIS MEETING  

AND FOR SUBMISSION OF PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE LOCATED ON THE PAGE  

FOLLOWING THE AGENDA 

 
AGENDA  

 
I. Roll Call 
 
II. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of April 9, 2024 
 
III. Executive Director’s Report 
 
IV. Administrative Matters 
 

A. Resolution - Appointment of Herb Wetzel as Interim Board Chair Replacing Anne Fadullon 
 
B. Resolution - Setting Date for Election of Board Officers and 11th Board Member 
 
C. Amendments to Approved Dispositions 

1. Amendment to Resolution No. 2022-38 adopted by the Board on October 11, 2022, which 
amended Resolution No. 2020-25 adopted by the Board on December 8, 2020 approving 
the development of twenty-nine (29) single-family homes, to approve the conversion of 
five (5) market-rate units to five (5) Turn the Key-eligible homes to be sold at 100% AMI 
for $280,000. 
• 2037, 2039, 2047, 2050 and 2052 E. William Street (CD 1) – BMK Properties, LLC 

 
2. Amendment to Resolution No. 2023-16 adopted by the Board on April 11, 2023, which 

amended Resolution No. 2022-30 adopted by the Board on September 13, 2022 
approving the renovation of six (6) single-family homes, to approve the return of five (5) 
homes to the Land Bank and the renovation of one (1) single-family home. 
• 759, 761, 763, 773 and 783 Pallas Street (CD 3) – West NoMa Revitalization Group LLC 

 
3. Amendment to Resolution No. 2019-35, adopted by the Board on May 15, 2019 for the 

development of twenty (20) homeownership units and twenty-eight (28) rental units, to 
approve the following: (1) the cure of the Construction Completion Deadline default; (2) 
the modification of the proposed development and the completion deadlines to 
encompass twenty-seven (27) single-family homes to be built in three (3) phases, with 
fourteen (14) units to be sold at 100% AMI for $270,000 to $299,000 to homebuyers 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 1 of 111



 

 

eligible for the Turn the Key Program, and thirteen (13) units to be sold at market rate for 
approximately $330,000 to $349,000. 
• 1901-09 and 1911-15 N. 33rd Street (CD 5) – Mosaic Berks, LP 

 
4. Amendment to Resolution No. 2022-22 adopted by the Board on August 9, 2022, which 

amended Resolution No. 2021-54 adopted by the Board on November 9, 2021 approving 
the construction of fifty-seven (57) single-family homes, of which (a) fourteen (14) were to 
be 1-bedroom, 1-bath affordable units to be sold at 80% AMI for $150,000; (b) fifteen (15) 
were to be 3-bedroom, 2-bath affordable units to be sold at 100% AMI for $250,000; and 
(c) 28 were to be be 3-bedroom, 2.5-bath units to be sold at market rate, with the sale 
price estimated at $440,000. The amendment is to approve the following: (1) the 
modification of the proposed development to encompass thirty-three (33) 3-story 
townhomes with 3 bedrooms and 2 baths, of which (a) seventeen (17) will be single-family 
homes to be sold at 100% AMI for $280,000 to homebuyers eligible for the Turn the Key 
Program and (b) sixteen (16) will be market rate single family homes with garages with an 
estimated sales price of $650,000; and (2) the removal of 1926, 1930, 1931, 1936 and 
1958 N. Orianna Street from the proposed development. 
• Paseo de Jardines: 32 Parcels – 33 units (Reduction of 8 Parcels) (CD 7)  TABLED 

 
D. Interagency Transfers 

The conveyance of these properties will be for disposition, reuse and/or management by the 
Philadelphia Housing Development Corporation. 
• 1944 W. Westmoreland Street (CD 8) 
• 5019 N. Camac Street (CD 9) 

 
V. Property Dispositions 
 

A. Side/Rear Yards 
The property below is proposed for conveyance to the following individual applicant as a side 
yard; the applicant owns and resides in the adjacent home. The property will be subject to a 
30-year mortgage and permanently restricted for use as a side yard. 
• 2839 N. Orianna Street (CD 7) – Pedro Alejandro Mencia Brito and Aryam Vargas Almonte 
 

B. Development – Affordable Housing (unsolicited)  
1. The properties below are proposed for disposition to Civetta Property Group LLC to 

develop nine (9) single-family homeownership units in the Fifth (5th) Councilmanic 
District. The units will be 3 stories, each approximately 1,200 square feet and containing 3 
bedrooms and 2 baths. They will be sold to households with incomes at or below 100% 
AMI with a maximum sales price of $280,000. The homes will be eligible for the 
Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject to a 
Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. The application was unsolicited and evaluated 
pursuant to the disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this project. 

• 2806, 2903*, 2907*, 2913, 2917-19*, 2925* and 2937-39* Cecil B. Moore Avenue  
(CD 5) (*denotes properties being transferred by the City of Philadelphia and 
Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the Land Bank) 
 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 2 of 111



 

 

 
 

2. The properties below are proposed for disposition to BMK Properties, LLC to develop 
forty-five (45) single-family homeownership units in the Seventh (7th) Councilmanic 
District. All forty-five (45) single-family homeownership units will be sold to households 
with incomes at or below 100% AMI with a maximum sales price of $280,000. The units 
will be two stories, with finished basements, containing 3 bedrooms and 2 baths at 
approximately 1,400 SF each.  The homes will be eligible for the Neighborhood 
Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject to a Declaration of 
Restrictive Covenants. The application was unsolicited and evaluated pursuant to the 
disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this project. 

• 311 Diamond St; 2219, 2231, 2233, 2235, 2250, 2301 and 2303* N. Lawrence Street; 
2047, 2112, 2128, 2132, 2142, 2146, 2152, 2208, 2214, 2230, 2234, 2238, 2355, 2365, 
2405, 2407, 2419, 2423, 2425 and 2433 N. 3rd Street; 1820, 1943, 2236 and 2405 N. 
4th Street; 1804, 1806, 2005, 2120, 2122, 2126, 2136, 2148, 2154, 2166, 2211, 2217 
and 2225 N. 5th Street (CD 7) (*denotes property being transferred by the Philadelphia 
Redevelopment Authority to the Land Bank) 
 

VI. Public Comment (Old & New Business) 
 
VII. Adjournment      

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 3 of 111



 

 

 

phdcphila.org 

FROM:  Andrea Imredy Saah, Esq., Senior Counsel 

RE:  Philadelphia Land Bank May 14, 2024, Board Meeting  
Remote Board Meeting Notice, Public Attendance, and Comment Procedures 

DATE:   May 2, 2024 
 

The May 2024 Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank (“Land Bank”) is 
currently scheduled for Tuesday, May 14, 2024, with the executive session to begin at 9:30 A.M. and 
the meeting to begin at 10:00 A.M or as soon as the Executive Session has ended.  This meeting will be 
held remotely using Zoom webinar.  The meeting is open to public attendees and for public comments and 
questions. 

PLEASE NOTE: To participate in the meeting on your computer, you must register in advance. This 
requirement is necessary to allow us to collect the names of participants as required by law.  Using a 
computer, tablet or smartphone, use the following link:  

https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_uShnioX9SLuhXBEJVc4utQ 

After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the webinar.  
Members of the public who join before 10 A.M. will be given access when the meeting begins.   
Webinar ID: 863 4196 8429; Passcode: 433530 

To join the meeting by calling in, dial one of the following numbers:  
+1 267 831 0333 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1 312 626 6799 or +1 929 205 6099 Passcode: 433530 

The Board agenda and package will be available to view no later than five (5) days prior to the Board 
meeting at https://phdcphila.org/who-we-are/boards/philadelphia-land-bank-board/.  Public comment and 
questions regarding the matters that are posted on the agenda may be submitted by email prior to the Board 
meeting and/or in person if attending the Board meeting.   

Public Comment Prior to Board Meeting: 
Email the following information to andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov by 3:00 p.m. on Monday, May 13, 2024: 
• Your full name and group or company affiliation, if applicable; 
• Contact information (your email address); 
• Identify the agenda item that you are addressing; and  
• State your question/comment in a clear and concise manner. 
Questions/comments submitted via email by the 3:00 pm deadline will be summarized at the Board meeting, 
answered or addressed to the extent the Board chooses, and attached to the minutes of the meeting.   

Land Bank Public Comment Policy During Board Meeting: 
To submit questions or comments during the Board meeting when public comment on an agenda item is 
requested by the Board Chair, use the “Raise Hand” function at the bottom of the screen.  Questions may 
also be submitted using the “Q&A” function. Q&A submissions will be attached to the minutes of the 
meeting. 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 4 of 111

https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_uShnioX9SLuhXBEJVc4utQ
https://phdcphila.org/who-we-are/boards/philadelphia-land-bank-board/
mailto:andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov


 

 

 

 

Individuals will be allowed two (2) minutes for public comment per person per agenda item.  
• The Chair reserves the right to limit comments when more than a certain number of people have the 

same comments on the same matter. 
• Staff will assist with timing and muting microphones as needed. 

 
Rules of Conduct: 

• Comments must be related to the specific agenda item in question.  
• There will be no personal attacks or hate speech against anyone, including applicants, staff members, 

Board members or other members of the public.  
 
Recording of Board Meeting: 
If possible, the Board meeting will be recorded and made publicly available within thirty (30) days.  If you 
have a question about an agenda item after the meeting concludes, please submit it as described above.  To 
the extent possible, it will be addressed by Land Bank staff or by the Board at the next meeting. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 5 of 111



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 1 of 42 
 

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK 
 

APRIL 9, 2024 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES (DRAFT) 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank was held on Tuesday, 
April 9, 2024, via Zoom webinar, of which proper notices were given.  A condensed certified 
transcript of this meeting is attached to these minutes as Exhibit A. 
 

Call to Order 
 
Acting Board Chair Andrew Goodman called the meeting to order at 10:03 a.m. 
 
Andrea Imredy Saah, Senior Counsel, made the following announcements: 
 
Today’s Board meeting is being held via an authorized communication device and is being recorded. 
Questions and comments may be made using the Q&A function or by using the “raise hand” 
function. If you are calling in and not using the Zoom webinar link, you may ask questions or make 
comments by pressing *9 on your phone or using the “raise hand” function.  Please do not use the 
Chat function. If any member of the public has any issues submitting questions or comments, please 
send an email to Andrea.Saah@phdc.phila.gov.  Please note that all questions and comments received 
by email prior to this meeting or through the Q&A function during the meeting will be included in 
the minutes.  All questions and comments received by 5 pm yesterday were shared with the Board. 
 
Prior to today’s Public Session, the Board held an Executive Session during which Mr. Rodriguez 
reviewed the agenda and discussed the order of review of the agenda items. 
 

Item I 
Roll Call 

 
The following members of the Board of Directors reported present: Alexander Balloon, Andrew 
Goodman, Maria Gonzalez, Michael Johns, Rebecca Lopez Kriss, and Rick Sauer. 
 
The following Board members were absent during roll call: Majeedah Rashid, who had informed 
Land Bank staff that she might be able to join the meeting later in the morning.  Three seats are 
currently vacant.   
 
The following Land Management staff members were present: Angel Rodriguez, Andrea Imredy 
Saah, Esq., Robert Spence, Esq., Todd Hestand, Brian Romano, Tracy Pinson-Reviere, Cristina 
Martinez, and Mathen Pullukattu. 
 
Public Attendees: The list of public attendees follows these minutes. 
 
A quorum of Directors was present, and the meeting, having been duly convened, proceeded with 
business. 
 
Mr. Goodman announced that an updated agenda was posted online.  Item V.B.1. appeared on the 
initial posted agenda but is being tabled at this time. 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 6 of 111

mailto:Andrea.Saah@phdc.phila.gov


PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 2 of 42 
 

The order of the items under Agenda Item V.A. will be switched, and the item listed as V.A.2. will be 
heard first.  The Board currently has a quorum for all other agenda items, but there is not a quorum 
for agenda V.A.1.  One Board member has recused themselves from item V.A.1; moving it to later in 
the agenda gives Board Member Rashid more time to join the meeting for a quorum to be present 
when the item is considered. 
 

Item II 
Approval of Board Minutes 

 
Mr. Goodman called for questions or comments from the Board regarding the minutes of the Board 
meeting of March 12, 2024. There were none. 
 
Mr. Goodman called for a motion regarding approval of the minutes. 
 
Ms. Lopez Kriss moved to approve the minutes. Mr. Johns seconded the motion. 
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the March 12, 2024, Board 
Meeting minutes. 
 

Item III 
Executive Director’s Report 

 
Mr. Rodriguez had no Executive Director’s report other than to inform the Board that staff is working 
diligently to get prospective home buyers approved and into homes built on Land Bank land that 
were approved for participation in the Turn the Key (TTK) program. 
 

Item IV 
Administrative Matters 

 
A. Interagency Transfers 
 
Item IV.A.1 
 
Mr. Rodriguez requested the Board’s approval to transfer property in the 8th Council District to the 
Philadelphia Housing Authority (the PHA) for the preservation of affordable rental housing.  The 
properties are 6657-59 Blakemore Street; 50, 56, 60-74 and 101 Collom Street; 67, 83, 85 and 87 
Church Lane; 45, 47 and 51 E. Garfield Street; 5417, 5423-27, 5429-43, 5513 and 5515 Lena Street; 
4949, 4951, 6526-34 Germantown Avenue; 117 Manheim Street; and 36, 38, 40, 42, 44, 46 and 63 E. 
Wister Street.  The properties are being transferred from the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority 
(PRA) to the PHA via the Land Bank, and the transfer is being done in collaboration with the 8th 
Councilmanic District. 
 
Mr. Goodman asked if any public comment was received prior to today’s Board meeting on this 
agenda item.  Ms. Imredy Saah responded that nothing was received. 
 
Mr. Goodman asked if the Board had any questions or comments on this agenda item.   Mr. Sauer 
asked the staff to clarify the use of the proposed transfers for the benefit of the public.  Mr. Rodriguez 
explained that the transfer will allow the PHA to seek financing to renovate the properties and 
preserve them as affordable rental housing.  Mr. Johns asked if the background on this disposition 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 7 of 111



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 3 of 42 
 

could be explained to the public.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that the properties were formerly known 
as Germantown Settlement properties.  The properties were taken to mortgage foreclosure by 
Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority (PRA) due to the developer’s default under the 
redevelopment agreement.  PRA has since been tasked to provide property management services, but 
PHA is better equipped to manage the properties and their tenants.  Conversations with Council lead 
to a determination that the properties should be transferred to the PHA. 
 
Mr. Goodman then reviewed the Land Bank Board’s meeting public comment rules and called for 
public comments and questions.  Mr. Goodman recognized Greg Paulmier.  Mr. Paulmier requested 
confirmation that the PHA would be taking ownership and continuing to provide low- and moderate-
income rental housing for residents in the community. Mr. Rodriguez confirmed that is correct. 
 
Mr. Goodman next recognized Yvonne Haskins.  Ms. Haskins expressed displeasure that the 
properties are being transferred to the PHA and not being made available for homeownership 
opportunities.  Ms. Haskins’s full comments can be found at pages 14 to 16 of the attached transcript. 
 
Mr. Goodman recognized Allison Weiss of SoLo Germantown Civic Association.  Ms. Weiss believes 
that community input was ignored, and asked questions about the timing and process for the transfer 
to the PHA, and when the properties would be available for occupants.  Ms. Weiss’s full comments 
can be found at pages 16 to 17 of the attached transcript. Mr. Rodriguez responded that the transfer 
will receive all necessary approvals in short order, and the deeds will likely be recorded in the next 
couple of months. 
 
Mr. Goodman noted the properties have been having problems for a long time, and asked whether 
this transfer would allow the properties to become long-term affordable housing.  Mr. Rodriguez 
confirmed that is the plan.  Mr. Johns asked if someone from the PHA would be at the PRA Board 
meeting to answer questions.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that the PHA does not typically send a 
representative for interagency transfers. 
 
Mr. Sauer asked if the PHA planned for all units to be affordable rentals or if there might be 
homeownership opportunities.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that he does not know PHA’s plans, but that 
PHA has the capacity to acquire, manage, and finance the renovation of the properties.  Mr. Sauer 
asked if there was any community notification for the transfer.  Mr. Rodriguez responded there was 
no notification. 
 
Mr. Johns expressed a desire to hear from the PHA regarding its plans for the properties. 
 
Ms. Gonzalez expressed support for the PHA and its efforts to expand affordable housing in 
Philadelphia. 
 
Ms. Lopez Kriss asked if there were any alternatives to this transfer while maintaining the units as 
affordable housing.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that he is not aware of any other public or private 
entity which can both relocate the tenants to alternate affordable housing and manage the renovation 
and re-occupation of the subject properties.  Mr. Johns concurred. 
 
Mr. Goodman called for a motion regarding the interagency transfer.   Mr. Balloon moved to approve 
the interagency transfer and Ms. Gonzalez seconded the motion.    
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution 
Authorizing Conveyance of 6657-59 Blakemore Street; 50, 56, 60-74, 101 Collom Street; 67, 83, 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 8 of 111



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 4 of 42 
 

85, 87 Church Lane; 45, 47, 51 East Garfield Street; 5417, 5423-27, 5429-43, 5513, 5515 Lena 
Street; 4949, 4951, 6526-34 Germantown Avenue; 117 Manheim Street; 36, 38, 40, 42, 44, 46, 63 
East Wister Street to Philadelphia Housing Authority (attached to these minutes as Exhibit B). 
 
Item IV.A.2 
 
Mr. Rodriguez requested the Board’s approval to transfer properties in the 3rd Council District to the 
PHA for the Westpark Choice Neighborhoods application.  The properties are 4310R Haverford 
Avenue and 4419R Market Street.  The properties are being transferred from the City to PHA via the 
PRA and the Land Bank, and the transfer is being done in collaboration with the 3rd Councilmanic 
District.  The properties are remnants of former parcels mostly already conveyed to the PHA in the 
past.  Ms. Imredy Saah worked with the PHA to develop the legal descriptions and addresses, and 
these transfers will complete the assemblage. 
 
Mr. Goodman asked if these are part of the existing PHA site or if they are adjacent.  Mr. Rodriguez 
responded that they are in the development area but had been left out of conveyances over time.  Ms. 
Imredy Saah added that the properties were assumed to be owned by PHA, but title work identified 
the City as the actual owner, and this transfer simply memorializes what was always assumed to be 
the case. 
 
Mr. Goodman asked if any public comment was received prior to today’s Board meeting on this 
agenda item.  Ms. Imredy Saah responded that nothing was received. 
 
Mr. Goodman called for questions or comments from the Board.  There were none. 
 
Mr. Goodman called for questions or comments from the public.  There were none. 
 
Mr. Goodman called for a motion regarding the interagency transfer.  Mr. Johns moved to approve 
the interagency transfer and Mr. Balloon seconded the motion. 
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution 
Authorizing Conveyance of 4310R Haverford Avenue and 4419R Market Street to Philadelphia 
Housing Authority (attached to these minutes as Exhibit C). 
 

Item V 
Property Dispositions 

 
A.  Development – Affordable Housing (Unsolicited) 
 
Mr. Goodman reiterated the Board would start with item V.A.2 on the posted agenda. 
 
Item V.A.2 
 
Mr. Rodriguez requested the Board’s approval to convey 2502, 2503, 2542, 2552 and 2559 North 
28th Street in the 5th Council District to Soar City Development Co. to develop five (5) single-family 
homeownership units. All five (5) single-family homeownership units will be sold to households with 
incomes at or below 100% AMI with a maximum sale price of $280,000. The units will be three 
stories, containing 3 bedrooms and 2 baths at approximately 1,200 SF each. Homebuyers will be 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 9 of 111



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 5 of 42 
 

eligible for the Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program. The application was 
unsolicited and evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this project. 
 
Mr. Goodman requested confirmation that the community meeting occurred prior to today’s Board 
meeting.   Mr. Rodriguez confirmed that was the case.  
 
Mr. Goodman asked if any comments were received prior to today’s Board meeting.  Ms. Imredy 
Saah received four (4) letters of support, which were provided to the Board prior to the meeting.  The 
letters are from Kevin Williams on behalf of Black Squirrel, David Langlieb on behalf of 
Philadelphia Accelerator Fund, Christopher Pitt on behalf of Pitt Pass Development Group, and 
Kevin Moran on behalf of ULI Philadelphia.  All letters are attached in full to the minutes as Exhibit 
D.  They all highlighted the importance of increasing the number of projects awarded to small 
minority developers.   
 
Mr. Goodman noted that this item was previously before the Board and asked for clarification 
regarding the changes.  Mr. Rodriguez described the design changes, including a set-back third story 
while maintaining the front façade in accordance with the design overlay. 
 
Mr. Johns commended the architect team on improving the design but raised questions about the 
accuracy of the fact sheet that was distributed, including the square footage of the units, the number 
of stories in the units, the gross square footage for the project, and whether there are porches in the 
plans. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez stated that the developer, Ibraheim Campbell, was participating in the meeting, and 
requested that he respond.  Mr. Campbell clarified that the current plans include three stories but that 
based on the feedback he received at the community meeting, he had decided to change the plans 
again to build homes of 1,200 square feet with two stories, without a setback, but with a porch.  He 
had not provided those revised plans to the Land Bank staff. 
 
Mr. Goodman called for questions or comments from the public.  Mr. Goodman recognized Bonita 
Cummings on behalf of Strawberry Mansion Community Concern.  Ms. Cummings does not support 
the project.  Ms. Cummings’s full comments can be found at pages 43 to 46 of the attached transcript. 
 
Mr. Goodman recognized Calvin Williams. Mr. Williams is from the Strawberry Mansion 
neighborhood and supports the comments made by Ms. Cummings. 
 
Mr. Goodman recognized David Langlieb.  Mr. Langlieb is the Executive Director of the 
Philadelphia Accelerator Fund, and the Fund supports the project.  Mr. Langlieb’s full comments can 
be found at pages 48 to 49 of the attached transcript. 
 
Mr. Goodman and Mr. Rodriguez offered context on the TTK programs.  All units in this project will 
be eligible to receive the $75,000 soft mortgage and will be coupled with $10,000 of closing support.  
Mr. Rodriguez added that the average monthly mortgage payment for a TTK home at $280,000is 
approximately $1,353, which is lower than the average local rent for a 3-bedroom unit. 
 
Mr. Goodman asked whether the Land Bank could adjust its TTK-eligible property dispositions to 
target a lower AMI.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that Turn the Key is governed by the bond issuance 
documents, and adjusting the terms of the program would require at least Council approval. 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 10 of 111



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 6 of 42 
 

Mr. Sauer asked whether a lower target AMI requires a legislative change in light of previous 80% 
AMI dispositions.  Mr. Rodriguez distinguished RFP offerings, which provide the opportunity to set 
AMI levels, and unsolicited applications, which are governed by the disposition policy and existing 
legislation.  Mr. Sauer next suggested the Land Bank act more strategically in areas with limited land 
remaining in public ownership.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that Land Bank staff already regularly 
meet with Council and City staff to develop disposition strategies for neighborhoods in which the 
Land Bank is actively selling property.  Mr. Rodriguez also clarified that the Land Bank does not 
subsidize development.  Developer applicants must obtain private financing, and the selected 
applicants are highly motivated to complete their projects because they have contractual obligations 
to the Land Bank and financial obligations to their lenders. 
 
Ms. Gonzalez suggested a change to the Land Bank scoring rubric to better favor greater 
affordability.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that the scoring rubric was set by Council ordinance and can 
only be changed by Council. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez acknowledged Calvin Williams’s question “Will PHA advocate for Policy hanges 
[sic]?” in the Q&A feature. Mr. Rodriguez noted that PHA is not subject to the dispositions policy or 
ordinance.  PHA is a federally chartered entity with its own governance requirements.  The 
disposition ordinance applies to public property dispositions from the Land Bank and Redevelopment 
Authority to private entities and applicants. 
 
Mr. Goodman and Ms. Imredy Saah responded to the question in the Q&A regarding Board minutes, 
stating that the video recording is posted as soon as it is available and the draft minutes are posted as 
part of the next month’s Board package. 
 
Mr. Goodman called for a motion regarding the disposition.  Mr. Johns moved to approve the 
disposition, conditioned upon the staff making the corrections to the fact sheet and updating the 
posted Board package.  Ms. Gonzalez seconded the motion. 
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution 
Authorizing Conveyance of 2502, 2503, 2542, 2552 and 2559 North 28th Street to Soar City 
Development Co. (attached to these minutes as Exhibit E), conditioned upon updates to the fact 
sheet pertaining to the number of stories, unit square feet, setbacks, and front porches and said 
revised fact sheet being added to the posted April Board package. 
 
Item V.A.1 
 
Mr. Goodman noted that a Board member recused herself from the discussion and voting on this item 
and that the Board therefore did not have a quorum to conduct business on this item at this time.  As 
a result, the item has to be tabled.  Ms. Gonzales’s recusal letter is attached to these minutes as 
Exhibit F. Mr. Goodman apologized, and stated the Board is working to have the existing vacancies 
filled to reduce the likelihood of this problem recurring. 
 

Item VI 
Public Comment (Old & New Business) 

 
Mr. Goodman asked if any member of the public had old or new business they would like to bring to 
the Board. 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 11 of 111



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 7 of 42 

Mr. Goodman recognized Adam Butler.  Mr. Butler asked which Board member had to be recused.  
Mr. Goodman responded that Ms. Maria Gonzalez recused herself.  Mr. Butler requested that the 
Board have a Board member who supported the disposition of Land Bank land for non-development 
uses. 

Mr. Goodman recognized Mo Rushdy, the developer whose application was tabled.  Mr. Rushdy 
asked if a reason was given for the recusal.  Ms. Imredy Saah responded that the recusal letter will be 
included with the minutes, and the letter states that through her position as President of HACE, 
which is a member of the CEIBA Latino Equitable Development Coalition working in the 
neighborhood to promote affordable housing, she has an inherent conflict of interest.  CEIBA had 
already expressed its opposition to the proposed disposition that was tabled.  Mr. Rushdy asked what 
differentiates his application from the application in the same neighborhood which included 51 
percent affordable housing and 49 percent market rate housing and which Ms. Gonzalez voted to 
approve.  Ms. Gonzalez stated her recusal is consistent with her recusal from previous discussions of 
the tabled disposition. 

Mr. Goodman next recognized Bonita Cummings on behalf of Strawberry Mansion Community 
Concern.  Ms. Cummings asked for clarity regarding the conditional approval.  Mr. Goodman asked 
Mr. Rodriguez to distribute the updated Fact Sheet to the affected RCOs.  Mr. Rodriguez confirmed 
this will be done. 

Mr. Goodman next recognized Xiente RCO.  Michelle Carrera spoke on behalf of the RCO and asked 
about the effect of community meetings and community opposition on the tabled disposition.  Mr. 
Rodriguez responded that the purpose of the community meeting is to inform the community about 
the project and to give community members information prior to the Land Bank Board of Directors 
making a determination regarding the project.  Mr. Rodriguez added that the Board takes all 
information, including community responses, into consideration when deliberating how to vote on 
each item. 

Mr. Goodman recognized Calvin Williams.  Mr. Williams expressed support for righting the wrongs 
which have been done against his community, and he has no issues with the recusal. 

Item VII 
Adjournment 

Seeing no further comments from the Board or the public, Mr. Goodman called for a motion to 
adjourn.  Mr. Sauer moved to adjourn the meeting and Ms. Gonzalez seconded the motion. 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously voted to adjourn at 11:30 am. 

NOTE:  Any comments and questions submitted via the Q&A function follow the list of attendees 
attached to these minutes. 

SECRETARY TO THE BOARD 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 12 of 111



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 8 of 42 
 

PUBLIC ATTENDANCE SHEET 
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, April 9, 2024, at 10:00 AM, held remotely using Zoom Webinar. 
 

User Name 
Jamila Davis 

Mark Coriolan 
Abdul-Rahim Muhammad 

David Fecteau 
Winnie Branton 
Mike Tomasetti 
Jacquelyn Sims 

Strawberry Mansion Community Concern 
(Bonita Cummings)  

Wadia Gardiner 
Mo Rushdy 

Allison Weiss 
Russell Hicks 
Kwame Gray 

Logan M 
Julian Rios 

Mark Lawson 
Omaira Santiago 

Ibraheim Campbell 
Manny Delgado 
Candis Pressley 
Walter Toliver 
David Langlieb 
Suzanne Ponsen 
Jake Blumgart 

Antonio Cerqueira 
Sheila Newkirk-Squire 

Daniel Galarraga 
Kiana Gonzalez 
Doris Aldridge 

Leah Apgar 
Aimee Thomson 
David Whitaker 
Greg Paulmier 

Michelle Carrera 
Charlie Huemmler 

Rose Gray 
 

Page 1 of 2  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 13 of 111



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 9 of 42 
 

PUBLIC ATTENDANCE SHEET 
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, April 9, 2024, at 10:00 AM, held remotely using Zoom Webinar.  
 

User Name 
Dee Dukes 

Calvin Williams 
Lydia Hurtado 
Kevin Moran 

Michael Kuehner 
Ben Fries 

Svitlana Tutova 
Conlan Crosley 

Ubong Udoekwere 
Xiente RCO 
Mark Harris 

Iliana Dominguez-franco 
Sean Ongley 
Sloane Folks 

Yvonne Haskins 
Leslie Fuentes 

Dawn Rulli 
Kyle Meiers 

Rhakeim Miller 
Relina Bonilla 

Ryan Boyer 
Pamela Bracey 
Christopher Pitt 
Lansana Sylla 

Caller 1 
Caller 2 
Caller 3 

 
Page 2 of 2 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 14 of 111



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 10 of 42 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS SUBMITTED IN Q&A 
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, April 9, 2024, at 10:00 AM, held remotely using Zoom Webinar 
 

# Question Asker Name Answer 

1 
Where is the agenda? 

Dee Dukes 
 

https://phdcphila.org/who-we-
are/boards/philadelphia-land-
bank-board/ 

2 
Where do you get a list of the 
addresses? 
 

Dee Dukes 
 

It is in the agenda 
 

3 
Does this mean they will continue 
to be for rent only going forward? 
 

Jacquelyn Sims 
 

That will be determined by 
PHA 
 

4 

I totally support the transfer of 
these property to the Philadelphia 
Housing Authority 
 

greg paulmier 
  

5 
Will PHA advocate for Policy 
hanges? 
 

Calvin Williams 
 

This is not a PHA issue 
 

6 
where can we access the after 
meeting minutes? 
 

kiana gonzalez 
  

7 

Sounds like you can only 
introduce what has been 
submitted for review on 
nonsolicited proposals and make 
no decisions regarding lowering 
the AMI. 
 

Jacquelyn Sims 
  

8 
How do you apply to be a Board 
member on Land Bank? 
 

Dee Dukes 
 

Board members are appointd by 
either the Administration or 
City Council 
 

9. 

What is the status of the 4215, 
4217, 4219 & 4221 Brown Street, 
that the ICPIC New Africa Center 
submitted and application for in 
late Nov. 2023? 
 

Abdul-Rahim 
Muhammad 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 15 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 11 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 16 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 12 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 17 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 13 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 18 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 14 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 19 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 15 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 20 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 16 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 21 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 17 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 22 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 18 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 23 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 19 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 24 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 20 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 25 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 21 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 26 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 22 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 27 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 23 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 28 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 24 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 29 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 25 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 30 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 26 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 31 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 27 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 32 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 28 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 33 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 29 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 34 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 30 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 35 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 31 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 36 of 111



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 32 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 37 of 111



Exhibit B 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 33 of 42 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-8  

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF 6657-59 BLAKEMORE STREET;  

50, 56, 60-74, 101 COLLOM STREET; 67, 83, 85, 87 CHURCH LANE;  
45, 47, 51 EAST GARFIELD STREET; 5417, 5423-27, 5429-43, 5513, 5515 LENA STREET; 4949, 

4951, 6526-34 GERMANTOWN AVENUE; 117 MANHEIM STREET;  
36, 38, 40, 42, 44, 46, 63 EAST WISTER STREET 
TO PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY 

 
WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank 

(the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property 
of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 
subject to the terms and conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code. 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests 

of the Land Bank to convey 6657-59 Blakemore Street; 50, 56, 60-74 and 101 Collom Street; 67, 83, 85 
and 87 Church Lane; 45, 47 and 51 East Garfield Street; 5417, 5423-27, 5429-43, 5513 and 5515 Lena 
Street; 4949, 4951 and 6526-34 Germantown Avenue; 117 Manheim Street; and 36, 38, 40, 42, 44, 46 and 
63 East Wister Street (the “Property”) to the Philadelphia Housing Authority (the “PHA”) for 
disposition, reuse and/or management as determined by the PHA. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Philadelphia Land Bank that: 
 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the PHA for One and 00/100 U.S. Dollar ($1.00) is in the best 
interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved. 
 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 
of the Philadelphia Code. 

 
3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 
any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to 
consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from 
time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of 
them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, 
supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive 
Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this 
Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and 
binding obligations of the Land Bank. 

 
4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 
will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 
date of such modifications. 

 
5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on April 9, 2024. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 38 of 111

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=pennsylvania(philadelphia_pa)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%27Chapter%2016-400%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_Chapter16-400


Exhibit C 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 34 of 42 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-9 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF 4310R HAVERFORD AVENUE AND  

4419R MARKET STREET TO PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank 
(the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property 
of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 
subject to the terms and conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code. 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests 

of the Land Bank to convey 4310R Haverford Avenue and 4419R Market Street (the “Property”) to the 
Philadelphia Housing Authority (the “PHA”) for disposition, reuse and/or management as determined by 
the PHA. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Philadelphia Land Bank that: 
 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the PHA for One and 00/100 U.S. Dollar ($1.00) is in the best 
interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved. 
 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 
of the Philadelphia Code. 

 
3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 
any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to 
consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from 
time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of 
them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, 
supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive 
Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this 
Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and 
binding obligations of the Land Bank. 

 
4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 
will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 
date of such modifications. 

 
5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on April 9, 2024. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 39 of 111

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=pennsylvania(philadelphia_pa)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%27Chapter%2016-400%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_Chapter16-400


Exhibit D 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 35 of 42 
 
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 40 of 111



Exhibit D 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 36 of 42 
 
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 41 of 111



Exhibit D 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 37 of 42 
 
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 42 of 111



Exhibit D 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 38 of 42 
 
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 43 of 111



Exhibit D 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 39 of 42 
 
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 44 of 111



Exhibit E 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 40 of 42 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-10  

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF  

2502, 2503, 2542, 2552 AND 2559 NORTH 28TH STREET  
TO SOAR CITY DEVELOPMENT CO. 

 
WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank 

(the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property 
of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 
subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and 
conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code. 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests 

of the Land Bank to convey 2502, 2503, 2542, 2552 and 2559 North 28th Street (collectively, the 
“Property”) to Soar City Development Co., a Pennsylvania corporation (the “Purchaser”). 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Philadelphia Land Bank that: 
 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for Five Thousand and 00/100 U.S. Dollars 
($5,000.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by 
resolution of Philadelphia City Council.  

 
2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 

of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 
 
3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 
any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to 
consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from 
time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of 
them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, 
supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive 
Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this 
Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and 
binding obligations of the Land Bank. 

 
4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 
will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 
date of such modifications. 

 
5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on April 9, 2024. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 45 of 111

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=pennsylvania(philadelphia_pa)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%27Chapter%2016-400%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_Chapter16-400


Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 41 of 42 
 
Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 46 of 111



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2024 Page 42 of 42 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for May 14, 2024 Page 47 of 111




